Reference Guide Oracle FLEXCUBE Investor Servicing Release 14.0.0.0.0 [May] [2018]



Table of Contents

1.	PREFA	CE	1-1
	1.1 Au	DIENCE	1-1
	1.2 Re	LATED DOCUMENTS	1-1
	1.3 Co	NVENTIONS	1-2
2.	INTRO	DUCTION	2-1
	2.1 Ho	W TO LISE THIS GUIDE	2-1
3	OVED	VIEW OF ODACI F FI FYCURF MANACEMENT AND INTECDATION CONSOL F	3 1
5.	UVER	TEW OF ORACLE FLEXCUDE MANAGEMENT AND INTEGRATION CONSOLE	
	3.1 RE	LEASE DETAILS:	3-2
	3.2 EN	VIRONMENT DETAILS:	3-2
4.	SCREE	N DESIGN	4-1
	4.1 BA	SIC DETAILS	4-1
	4.1.1	Action	4-2
	4.1.2	Function Id	4-2
	4.1.3	Save Xml Path	4-2
	4.1.4	Function Type	4-2
	4.1.5	Parent Function	4-2
	4.1.6	Parent Xml	4-2
	4.1.7	Function Category	4-2
	4.1.8	Header Template	4-2
	4.1.9	Footer Template	4-2
	4.1.10	Deploy	4-3
	4.1.11	Release	4-3
	4.1.12	All Packages	4-3
	4.2 PR	EFERENCES	4-3
	4.2.1	Module	4-4
	4.2.2	Head office Function	4-4
	4.2.3	Logging Required	4-4
	4.2.4	Auto AEOD Aware	4-4
	4.2.5	Auto Authorization	4-4
	4.2.6	Tank Modification	4-4
	4.2.7	Field Log Required	4-4
	4.2.8	Branch Program ID	4-4
	4.2.9	Process Code	4-4
	4.2.10	Main Menu	4-4
	4.2.11	Sub-Menul	4-4
	4.2.12	Sub-Menu2	4-4
	4.2.13	Balloon Help	4-5
	4.3 DA	TA SOURCES	4-5
	4.3.1	Alias Name	4-5
	4.3.2	Data source	4-6
	4.3.3	Master	4-6
	4.3.4	Keiation 1 ype	4-6
	4.3.3	Mutti Kecora	4-6
	4.3.0	PK Cols	4-6
	4.5./	Pr 1 ypes	4-/
	4.5.8 1 2 0	r ureni	4-/
	4.5.9	Kettulion	4-/
	4.3.10	Dejuut where Clause	4-/

4.3.	.11	Default order by	. 4-7
4.3.	.12	<i>Type</i>	. 4-7
4.3.	.13	Mandatory	. 4-7
4.3.	.14	Data source columns	. 4-7
4.3	.15	Column Name	. 4-8
4.3	.16	Max Length	. 4-8
4.3	.17	Field Name	. 4-8
4.3	.18	Data Type	. 4-8
4.3	.19	Block Name	. 4-9
4.4	LIST	OF VALUES DEFINITION	. 4-9
4.4	.1	LOV Name	. 4-9
4.4	.2	LOV Query	. 4-9
4.4	.3	Query Cols	. 4-9
4.4	.4	\tilde{D} ata Type	. 4-9
4.4	.5	Visible	4-10
4.4	.6	Rdn Fld	4-10
4.4	.7	Rdn Fld Type	4-10
4.4	.8	Rdn/Col Label	4-10
4.5	DAT	A BLOCKS	4-10
4.5	.1	Block Name	4-11
4.5	.2	Parent	4-11
4.5	.3	XSD Node	4-11
4.5	.4	Multi Record	4-11
4.5	.5	Block Title	4-12
4 5	6	Relation Type	4-12
4 5	7	Rlock Type	4-12
4 5	., 8	Master Block	4-12
4 5	9	Rlock data sources	4-12
4.6	BLO	CK FIELDS	4-12
4.6	1	Field Name	4-13
4.6	2	Field Label	4-13
4.6	3	XSD Tag	4-13
4.6	.5 4	Display Type	4-13
4.6	5	Item Type	4-13
4.6	6	Text Area Rows	4-14
4.0	7	Text Area Columns	4.14
4.0	./ 8	Related Block	4.14
4.0	0	Related Field	- 1- 1-11
4.0	10	Parent Field	$A_{-}1A$
4.0	11	Min Val	$A_{-}1A$
4.0	12	Mar. Val	- 1- 1-11
	12	Max Decimals	-1-1 1 1 1
4.0	.15 14	I OV Name	$A_{-}1A$
4.0	15	Global LOV	A_{-15}
	16	Offling LOV Name	4-15 1/15
4.0	.10 17	Offling Clobal LOV	4-1J 1 15
4.0	.17 18	Field Set Name	4-15 1 16
4.0. 1 K	10	Data Type	10 Λ_16
4.0. 1 K	.17 20	Data source	+-10 1_16
4.0. 1 K	21	Duru source	
4.0. 1 K	.21	Field Size	4-10 1 16
4.0. 1 K	22	riew size	4-10 1 17
4.0. 1 K	.23 24	Default Value	+-1/ 117
4.0. 1 E	.24 25	Comp from Plack Comp from Field	4-1/ 17
4.0. 1 K	.25 26	Loops from Diock, Copy from Field	4-1/ 17
4.0	.20 Cura	ALLESS REY COUP	+-1/ 17
4./	CUS	IUM ATTRIDUTES TAD	4-1/

4.7.1	Attribute Name	
4.7.2	Attribute Value	
4.7.3	Selected	
4.8 EVE	ents Tab	4-18
4.8.1	Event Name	
4.8.2	Function Name	
4.8.3	Event type	4-19
484	Button Screen	4-19
485	Call form Name	4-20
486	Scroon Namo	4-20
4.0.0 4.9 SCR	FENS	4-20
4.) Der	Scroon Namo	
4.0.2	Screen Title	
4.9.2	Screen Time	
4.9.3	Screen 1 ype	
4.9.4	Same in street	
4.9.5	Screen size	
4.9.0	Ехи випоп 1 уре	4-21
4.10 IAE	35	
4.10.1	Screen Name	
4.10.2	Tab Name	
4.10.3	Tab Label	
4.10.4	Tab Access Key	
4.11 SEC	TION AND PARTITIONS	
4.12 Fiel	LD SETS	
4.12.1	Field set Name	
4.12.2	Field set Label	
4.12.3	Data Block	
4.12.4	Multi Record	
4.12.5	View Type	
4.12.6	Field set Height	
4.12.7	Field Set Width	4-24
4.12.8	No of Rows:	4-24
4.12.9	Screen Name	
4.12.10	Screen Portion	
4.12.11	Tab Name	
4.12.12	Section Name	
4.12.13	Partition Name	
4.12.14	- Horizontal FieldSet	4-25
4 12 15	Read Only	4-25
4 12 16	Navigation Rutton	4-25
4 12 17	Data Block Fields	4-25
4 12 18	Field Set Fields	4-25
4.12.10	Sub Partition Name	4-25
4.12.17	Sub I utilion Ivane	
4.15 AC	NONS	,
4.13.1	Samia Nama	
4.13.2	Or organization Id	
4.13.3	Uperation ta	
4.13.4	web service	
4.13.3		
4.13.0	Operation Code	
4.14 AM	ENDABLE:	
4.14.1	Data blocks	
4.14.2	New allowed	
4.14.3	Delete Allowed	
4.14.4	All Records	
4.14.5	Mandatory	

4.	14.6 Field Name	
4.	14.7 Amendable	
4.15	CALL FORMS	
4.	15.1 Function ID	
4.	15.2 Parent Block	
4.	15.3 Parent Data source	
4.	15.4 Relation	
4.	15.5 Relation Type	
4.	15.6 Display Type	
4.16	SCREEN ARGUMENTS:	
4.	16.1 Dependent Fields:	
4.17	LAUNCHFORMS	4-30
4.	17.1 Function ID	4-31
4.	17.2 Screen Arguments	
4.18	SUMMARY	
4.	18.1 Title	
4.	18.2 Data Block	
4.	18.3 Data Source	
4.	18.4 Default where Clause	
4.	18.5 Default Order By	
4.	18.6 Summary Type	
4.19	CUSTOM BUTTONS	
4.	19.1 Number of Rows	4-34
4.	19.2 Number of Buttons/Row	4-34
5. EX	XTENDED SEARCH OPTION	
51	L OCATE FIELD:	5-1
5.1	GOING TO BLOCK FIELD EROM PREVIEW	
5.2	Sound to Block Field FROM FREVIEW	
6. C	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY	
6. Cl	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES	
6. Cl 7. Ol	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES	6-1
 6. Cl 7. Ol 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Point End Units	
6. Cl 7. Ol 7 7.	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Private Record	
 Cl Cl Ol Ol T. T	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based	
6. Cl 7. Ol 7 7 7 7 7	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1
 CI CI OI 7. 7 7 7 8. ST 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1
 CI CI OI 7 7 7 7 8. ST 8.1 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME	
 Cl Cl Ol T. T. T. T. T. T. T. T. S. S	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1
6. Cl 7. Ol 7. J 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME Field SET NAMES	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1
6. Cl 7. Ol 7. Ol 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME Field SET NAMES LOV NAMES	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1
 CI CI O T. T.	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME FIELD SET NAMES LOV NAMES	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1
 CI CI O 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 8. 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 9. Co 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS Screen Name BLOCK NAME Field SET NAMES LOV NAMES	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1
 CI CI O 7. 7 7 7 7 7 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 9. Co 10. 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME Field SET NAMES LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8
 CI CI O 7. 7. 7 7 7 7 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 SC 10.1 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME Field Set NAME Field Set NAME FIELD SET NAMES LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE SOURCE REFRESH	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1
 CI CI O 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 SC 10.1 10.1 10.2 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME Field SET NAMES LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE Source Refresh Child Refresh	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1 10-1 10-1
 CI CI O 7. 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 9. Co 10.1 10.2 11. 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME FIELD SET NAMES LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE REFRESH SOURCE REFRESH CHILD REFRESH SCREEN CUSTOMIZER	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1
 CI CI O 7. O 7. 7. 7. 7. 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 SC 10.1 10.2 11. 12. 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS Screen Name Block Name Field Set Names LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE REFRESH Source Refresh CHILD REFRESH SCREEN CUSTOMIZER	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1
 CI CI O 7. O 7. 7. 7. 7. 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 9. Co 10.1 10.2 11. 12. 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME Field SET NAMES LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE REFRESH SOURCE REFRESH CHILD REFRESH SCREEN CUSTOMIZER NOTIFICATION	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 9-1 10-1
 CI CI O 7. O 7. 7. 7. 7. 8. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 9. Co 10.1 10.2 11. 12.1 12.1 12.2 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT - GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME FIELD SET NAMES LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE REFRESH SOURCE REFRESH CHILD REFRESH SCREEN CUSTOMIZER NOTIFICATION NOTIFICATION	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 12-1 12-1 12-1
 Cl Cl O T. O T. T. T. T. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 ST 8.3 8.4 Co 10.1 10.2 10.1 10.2 11. 12. 12.1 12.2 12.2 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1
 Cl Cl O T. O T. T. T. T. ST 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 ST 8.3 8.4 Co 10.1 10.2 10.1 10.2 11. 12. 12.1 12.3 12.4 	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY PEN DEVELOPMENT- GENERATED FILES 1.1 Front End Units 1.2 Back End units 1.3 Release Based 1.4 Action Based FANDARD NAMING CONVENTIONS SCREEN NAME BLOCK NAME FIELD SET NAMES LOV NAMES ONVERSION PROCEDURE REFRESH SOURCE REFRESH CHILD REFRESH SCREEN CUSTOMIZER NOTIFICATION ACTION NOTIFICATION FUNCTION NOTIFICATION CODE	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1
 Cl Cl O) 7. O) 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7. 7	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1
 CI CI O T. O T. T. T. S S<	HILD AND PARENT FUNCTIONALITY	6-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 8-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 10-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1 12-1

18.	DESIGN PRACTICES	
17.	FIELD LOCATOR	
16.	VIEW CHANGES	
15.2	OLD OR NEW	
15.1	Actions	
15.	DATA EXTRACTOR	
14.2	DESTINATION FOLDER	
14.1	Source Folder	
14.	BULK GENERATION	
13.1	2 SUMMARY	
13.1	1 TRIGGER LOGIC	
13.1	0 NOTIFICATION CODE	
13.9	SPECIFIC TRIGGERS	
13.8	TRIGGER WHEN CLAUSE	
13.7	PK Types	
13.6	PK Cols	
13.5	BASE TABLE	
13.4	EACH ROW	
13.3	Trigger Time	
13.1	DESCRIPTION	
13.1	TRIGGER CODE	13_1
13.	TRIGGER MAINTENANCE	
12.2	0 DATA TYPE	
12.1	9 TABLE FIELD	
12.1	8 XSD Field	
12.1	7 Field Order	
12.1	6 FILTER LOGIC	
12.1	5 HO FUNCTION	
12.1	4 Full Screen Reply	
12.1	3 PK TYPES	
12.1	2 PK Cot s	
12.1	1 RASE TARIE	
12.9	GATEWAY I/U KEQUEST	
12.8	GATEWAY SERVICE	
12.7	GATEWAY OPERATION	
10 5	a o	10.0

1. Preface

This document describes the features of Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console (OPEN DEVELOPMENT tool) and guides the developers on how to use OPEN DEVELOPMENT tool.

1.1 Audience

This document is intended for FLEXCUBE Application developers/users that use OPEN DEVELOPMENT tool to develop various FLEXCUBE components.

Proficiency	Resources
FLEXCUBE Functional Architecture	Training programs from Oracle Financial Software Services.
FLEXCUBE Technical Architecture	Training programs from Oracle Financial Software Services.
FLEXCUBE Object Naming conventions	Development Overview Guide
Working knowledge of Web based applications	Self Acquired
Working knowledge of Oracle Database	Oracle Documentations
Working knowledge of PLSQL developer	Respective vendor documents
Working knowledge of PLSQL & SQL Language	Self Acquired
Working knowledge of XML files	Self Acquired

To Use this manual, you need conceptual and working knowledge of the below:

1.2 Related documents

For more information on OPEN DEVELOPMENT development, see these resources:

- Overview Guide
- Getting Started
- Function ID Development.doc
- Web Service Development
- Notification Development
- BIP Report Integration



1.3 **Conventions**

The following text conventions are used in this document:

Convention Meaning

boldface	Boldface type indicates graphical user interface elements (for example, menus and menu items, buttons, tabs, dialog controls), including options that you select.
italic	italic type indicates book titles, emphasis, or placeholder variables forwhich you supply particular values.
monospace	Monospace type indicates language and syntax elements, directory and File name, URLs, text that appears on the screen, or text that you enter.
STOP	Indicates important information



2. Introduction

2.1 How to use this Guide

The information in this document includes:

- Chapter 2 , "Introduction"
- Chapter 3, "Overview of Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console"
- Chapter 4 , "Screen Design"
- Chapter 5, "Extended search option"
- Chapter 6 , "Child and Parent functionality"
- <u>Chapter 7 , "OPEN DEVELOPMENT- generated Files"</u>
- Chapter 8, "Standard Naming Conventions"
- Chapter 9, "Conversion procedure"
- Chapter 10 , "Refresh"
- Chapter 11, "Screen customizer"
- <u>Chapter 12 , "Notification"</u>
- Chapter 13, "Trigger Maintenance"
- Chapter 14, "Bulk Generation"
- Chapter 15, "Data Extractor"
- Chapter 16, "View Changes"
- Chapter 17, "Field Locator"
- Chapter 18, "Design practices"



3. Overview of Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console

The FLEXCUBE MICON (Management and Integration Console) has been designed to develop the different types of screens in FLEXCUBE. This tool has been designed to assist developers in designing screens with the capability of generating front end scripting files, PL/SQL Packages, Static data scripts and XSDS.

This generated code performs validations and does processing which is common across screens in FLEXCUBE, only the Business logic specific to the screen need to be added by the Developer in back end and front end units.

Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console have to be deployed for each Release and the tool identifies the Release type and the release number.

For Example

Release Name: FC 11.1

Release Type: KERNEL, CLUSTER or CUSTOM

Tool will generate all files and developers are supposed to add the business logic in designated units depending on the Release Type.

Using the Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console user can achieve screen design, Source Refresh, Child Refresh, Data Extractor, Bulk Generation, Notification, Trigger Maintenance, Screen Customizer, View Changes and Field Locator.

Below is the screen of Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console, which has all the links for above feature and same can be lunched from Tool link.

Oracle Flexcube MICON-Radhakrishna-Kernel-		
ORACLE [®] FLEXCUBE Managem	Signed In As Radhakrishna <mark>Sign Out</mark>	
Release Details Kernel 11.1 Kernel 11.1 Environment Details Kernel 11.1 Development https://blade-2i-flex.com:9443/FCJNeoWeb Emerge11/fc111sqahost English	Quick Links Function Generation Screen Customizer Bulk Generation Notifications Notification Set Release Change Password	 New Changes Field Locator Close Application

Title of the above screen shows the user about Release name and Release type of the development.



3.1 Release Details:

The Release details will gives the user information about the Release Name, Release Type and Release No. in which user is working.

3.2 Environment Details:

The Environment details gives the user information about the about Schema, Instance in which the user is working and Application URL and language in which the user is currently working.



4. Screen Design

This section describes Function ID (Screen) design in FLEXCUBE MICON.

The following are the stages involved in designing the FLECUBE Screen.

- Preferences
- Data sources
- Data blocks
- Screens
- Tabs
- Sections
- Field Sets
- Actions
- Call forms
- Launch forms
- List Of Values
- Summary

4.1 Basic Details

Below is the screen used to design the FLEXCUBE screen and same can be launched by clicking on "Function Generation" link of the Tool main page.





4.1.1 Action

The field indicates that, the screen to be designed or to be modified .Action New is for new screen design and load is for screen modification.

4.1.2 Function Id

Captures function Id Name and name can be of FLEXCUBE standard naming convention for the function id.

4.1.3 Save Xml Path

This is the path where the XMLs and JS files have to be saved in case of anew Functions. In case of loading an existing Function, Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console saves the files in the same directory.

The label description of the field will change depends on the action, if the action is load tool changes the label description of the field to Load Screen xml and attaches a Brows button to it so that user can browse the OPEN DEVELOPMENT xml and load it.

4.1.4 Function Type

Function Type can be Parent or Child (based on the screen which you are going to design). Refer child and parent functionality described in this document.

4.1.5 Parent Function

This field is applicable only if the function type is child and this field will be populated when the parent OPEN DEVELOPMENT xml is loaded.

4.1.6 Parent Xml

This field is also applicable only if the Function type is child. If the Function Type is child user has to load the OPEN DEVELOPMENT xml of the Parent Function using browse button provided to this field. It is non editable field if the action is "Load"

4.1.7 Function Category

Function category is based on your screen whether it is Maintenance or Transaction (Online), generated packages will be different for Maintenance and Transaction.

4.1.8 Header Template

A template can be selected for header. Depends on the template selected, tool will generate screen. Header Template can be Process for BPEL screens.

4.1.9 Footer Template

Tool has the options to design the audit trail block of the screen. One is select the Template and let the Tool to design audit trail of the screen depends on the selection, Maintenance, Maint Process and Process, depends on the selection tool design the audit trail block. If none is selected then user has to design audit trail block.



Transaction (online) screen Footer Template should be none and user has to design the audit trail block.

4.1.10 Deploy

Deploy Option allows the user to deploy both the front end and backed units generated by FLEXCUBE MICON. It deploys the FUNCTIONID.xml and FUNCTIONID_SYS.js in the ENG xml and JS path which is specified at the environment level .It Loads all the SPC, SQL, INC Files generated in the Scheme which is specified at the environment level.

4.1.11 Release

Release option gets the Check in information like check in mode, sfr no, site code etc and checks in the units.

4.1.12 All Packages

Restrictions can be done on package generation from Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console. If this check box is selected all packages will be generated including cluster, custom and kernel else only main packages will be generated.

4.2 Preferences

Function id level preferences like module, logging required, tanking modification Main menu, Sub-Menu1, Sub-Menu2, etc. can be given here, below is the screen for the same.

🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	n Generation- Radl	akrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fc1	11sqahost-English Web	page Dialog		
	ent And Integration Co	insole			r 🖪 7 📑 🛪	
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:/DEV/STDCIF	Function Parent Fur Paren	Type Parent ction t Xml Browse	Function Category Header Template Footer Template	Maintenance V None V None V	Caliform Type)ata 💙 🗌 All Files
Search	Preferences					E
	HeadOffice Auto End Of Logging Re Auto Authori: Tank Modific Field Log Re	Function Day Aware quired ation ations quired	Modul Module Descriptio Branch Program I Process Cod	le CO 🔀		
LaunchForms					Control String	+ -
Summary	FunctionID	Function Desc	Module *	Main Menu	Sub Menu-1	
	STDCIF		C0 AE	LBL_CUST	LBL_OPERATION	
	4					×



4.2.1 Module

It captures the Module of the function id.

4.2.2 Head office Function

It captures whether the function is head office function or not.

4.2.3 Logging Required

It captures whether logging is required for the function or not.

4.2.4 Auto AEOD Aware

It captures whether function is Auto AEOD Aware or not.

4.2.5 Auto Authorization

It captures whether Auto Authorization is allowed for the function or not.

4.2.6 Tank Modification

It captures whether modification to be tanked for the function or not.

4.2.7 Field Log Required

It captures whether filed Logging is required for the function or not.

4.2.8 Branch Program ID

It captures branch program id for the function.

4.2.9 Process Code

It captures process code for the function.

4.2.10 Main Menu

Main menu of the function can be specified here.

4.2.11 Sub-Menu1

Sub-menu1 of the function can be specified here.

4.2.12 Sub-Menu2

Sub-menu2 of the function can be specified here.



4.2.13 Balloon Help

Balloon Help of the function can be specified here.

4.3 Data sources

Data Sources are the Tables and views used in the function. Data sources can be added to design the screen by right clicking on the data source of Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console Tree. Data source can be entered or can be selected from list of values which is attached to the table Name field. As shown in the below screen.

🗿 AddTable Web Page Dialog	
Table Name	×E
Alias Name]
	Ok Cancel

4.3.1 Alias Name

An alias can be maintained for a data source in this field.

Before adding a data source user has to maintain the primary key column for the data source in STTB_PK_COLS.



🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	m Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fc111sqa	ihost-English Webpage Dialog	
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Console		r 🖪 7 🖡 🗣 🛇 🔛
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D1DEVISTDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Maintenance Header Template None Footer Template None	Caliform Type Data 💌
Search	Data Source Details		n
 Preferences DataSource STM_CUSTOMER ListOfValues DataBlocks Screens FieldSets Actions LaunchForms Summary 	Data Source STTM_CUSTOMER Master Yes v Relation Type One To One v Multi Record No v PK Cols * CUSTOMER_NO PK Types * VARCHAR2	Parent Relation Where Clause Default Order By ♥♥ Type Normal ♥ ♥♥ Mandatory	

Below is the screen where you can define the properties of a data source selected

4.3.2 Data source

This is a non editable field, which shows the data source name selected.

4.3.3 Master

One master data source is mandatory for designing a screen and same can be maintained here.

4.3.4 Relation Type

Relation type can be selected for the selected data source with the parent, "One To One" or "One To Many", the relation should be one to many if the parent data source is Multi Record entry and child data source is single Record.

4.3.5 Multi Record

This field tells about the type of data source in the screen, whether it is multiple Entry record or the single Entry Record data source, Select the field value "Yes" or "No" accordingly.

4.3.6 PK cols

The value of this field will be picked from the STTB_PK_COLS, if it is maintained, and Tool will allow the user to override the value and same value will be used in generating the package.



4.3.7 <u>PK Types</u>

The value of this field will be picked from the STTB_PK_COLS, if it is maintained, and Tool will allow you to override the value and same value will be used in generating the package.

4.3.8 Parent

This field will allow the user to select a Parent Data source for the current Data source, this relation will be used in generated packages.

Same Data Source Cannot be a parent to itself.

4.3.9 Relation

Relation between current data source and its parent data source can be maintained in this field.

4.3.10 Default Where Clause

You can define the where clause for the data source. The values of where clause field will be used in generating the query statements for current data source

4.3.11 Default order by

Captures the default where clause for the data source. The values of where clause field will be used in generating the query statements for current data source in generated packages.

4.3.12 <u>Type</u>

Data source can be selected depends on the Type requirement of the screen design.

Below are the functionalities of the Types.

- **Normal**: Tool generates packages with insert and updates statements with this data source and infra will build the request and response.
- **Query:** The data source can be used for only querying the data; Tool will generate packages without insert or update statements with this data source.
- **InOnly:** Tool will generate the packages without insert and update with this data source and infra will build only request with this data source. Response also will be build based on the values received from the Front End.
- **Summary**: This data source can be used for summary and this data source will not be considered while generating the packages.

4.3.13 Mandatory

Data source should have one record/value.

4.3.14 Data source columns

Data source column will be added by right clicking on the data source.



A Oracle Elevenhe MICON, Eunetic	n Congration, Badbakrichna Korpol 11 1 Fe111ega	beet English Webpage Dialog	
	ient And Integration Console	nost-rugusu webpage bidaog	
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:DEVISTDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Maintenance V Header Template None V Footer Template None V	Caliform Type Data V All Files
Search	DataSource Field Details		(
	Column Name CUSTOMER_NO Max Length 9 Field Name CUSTNO	Data Type VARCHAR2 Block Name	

Below is the screen where column properties can be maintained.

4.3.15 Column Name

This is an information column; tool will not allow the user to change the value.

4.3.16 Max Length

The max length of column will be defaulted while adding a column and it can be overwritten. This value will be considered for the field max length of the designed screen. It means, at the run time system will not allow the user to enter the text more than this length.

4.3.17 Field Name

Field name will be populated while adding the column, which is maintained in CSTB_DATA_DICTIONARY table. Non editable field.

4.3.18 Data Type

This shows about data type of the column selected and value will be populated while adding the column, this is a non editable field.



4.3.19 Block Name

It is an information field, if the field is added to a block, that block name will be populated here.

4.4 List of values definition

LOV's can be defined using the below screen, and same can be launched by right click on ListOfValues of Tree in Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console.

🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	n Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.	1-Fc111sqahost-English Webpage Dialog	
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Console		r 🖪 🌮 📑 💊 🖾
Action New 🛩	Function Type Parent 🗸	Function Category Maintenance 🗸	Caliform Type Data 🗸
Function Id STDCIF	Parent Function	Header Template None 💌	All Files
Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Parent Xml	Browse Footer Template None 💌	
Search	LOV Details		5
Preferences	LOV Name * LOV CUST		
DataSource	LOV QUERY SELECT CUSTOMER TYP	PE FROM STTM CUSTOMER WHERE CUSTOMER NO=?	
Listorvalues			
DataBlocks			
🗉 🚞 Screens	0.000	Determine Markle Determine Determine	Populate
FieldSets		DataType Visible Rdn Fld Redn Fld Type	Redn/Col Label
CallForms	COSTOMER_TYPE		×=.
launchForms			
🗀 Summary			

4.4.1 LOV Name

Name of the LOV, a non editable field and same can be changed using rename option of the Tool.

4.4.2 LOV Query

Captures the LOV query and band variables can captured with "?".

4.4.3 Query Cols

Depends on the IOV Query columns will be populated by clicking the populate button. Populate It's a non editable field.

4.4.4 Data Type

Data type will be populated depends on the data type of the column in the data base, this can be overwritten.



4.4.5 Visible

A result column of the LOV can be made as invisible by using this filed.

4.4.6 <u>Rdn Fld</u>

A field can be made as reduction of non reduction by using this flag.

4.4.7 Rdn Fld Type

Display type of the reduction field can be maintained. Display type of the reduction field can be either of the below given list

- TEXT
- CHECK BOX
- RADIO
- SELECT

4.4.8 Rdn/Col Label

Title for each field can be maintained as Label code, and label code can be selected from the list of values attached to the field.

Bind variables and return fields of a LOV are maintained at block field properties.

4.5 Data Blocks

Data Block is a logical grouping of columns from one or more data sources. Below is the procedure of defining Data blocks in Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console.

Below is the screen where Data Block Properties can be maintained.



Oracle Elexcube MICON- Function	m Generation- Radbakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Ec111soa	host-English Wehnage Dialog	
	ent And Integration Console		r 🖬 7 🖡 🗣 🛇 🖆
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XIIL Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Maintenance 💌 Header Template None 💌 Footer Template None 💌	Caliform Type Data 💌 🗌 All Files
Search	Block Properties		•
Preferences DataSource ListOfValues DataBlocks BLC_CUSTMRDTLS Screens	Block Name BLK_CUSTMRDTLS Parent XSD Node Custmrdtis Multi Record No	Block Title Relation Type One To One 💌 Block Type Normal 🔍 Master Block Yes 💙	×E
FieldSets Actions CallForms LaunchForms Summary	Datasource available	Datasour	ce added

4.5.1 Block Name

This field will be defaulted with block name which is added and this value cat be changed the user.

4.5.2 Parent

This field will be populated with all the data blocks which are added, and you can select the parent data block for the current block .Ultimate parent should not have the parent data block and this information will be used while generating the front units and same will be used by FLEXCUBE to build request xml.

4.5.3 XSD Node

This field captures the xsd node. Tool will use this name for generation of node in xsd's .

4.5.4 Multi Record

Using this field you can decide block type, whether the block is single entry block or multiple entry blocks.

Depends on this value, the field "data sources available" will be populated.

If the value is "Yes" the field "data source available" will be populated with data sources which have flag Multi record "Yes" and vice versa.



4.5.5 Block Title

You can select the block title here by select the label code from list of values, and this title will be displayed on the block.

4.5.6 Relation Type

This field captures the Type of the relation, One to One or One to Many and this information will be used while generating the front units and same will be used by FLEXCUBE to build request xml.

4.5.7 Block Type

Type of the block can be selected depends on the requirement, below are the description of the each type.

- **Control:** if the block is used for only UI purpose and this block data is not going for the back end to process the data at run time. Infra will not build the request and response with this block and OPEN DEVELOPMENT will not populate any data sources to select
- **Normal:** Block which is used in the back end to process that data. Infra builds the request and response with this block.
- **Summary:** Block which is used for creating the summary screen.

4.5.8 Master Block

One master block is compulsory while designing the screen and using this flag you can define a block as master. This parameter will be using in generating xsd's , packages and front end units .

4.5.9 Block data sources

Depends on the "Multi Record" flag, data sources will be populated. Then attach the data sources required to the block.

Validations for populating the data source:

Multi Record: Yes

All the data sources which have "Multi Record" flag "YES" and "Relation Type" One To One

Multi Record: No

All the Data source which have "Multi Record" No

While attaching Data Sources to Blocks, multiple data sources should be selected only if such data Sources can be functionally clubber. For examples CSTM_PRODUCT and LCTM_PRODUCT_DEFINITION. Clubbing should not be arbitrary.

4.6 Block fields

Block fields can be added to a block by right clicking on block, all the data sources and respective fields will be available to add to block.

Below is the screen where field properties can be entered



Ø Oracle Flexcube MICON- Function	n Generation- Radl	akrishna-Kernel-11.1-I	- c111sqat	host-English Wel	bpage Dialog	
	ent And Integration Co	onsole				r 🖬 🕫 🖡 🗣 🛇 🖺
Action New 🛩	Function	Type Parent 🗸		Function Category	Maintenance 🗸	Callform Type Data 🗸
Function Id STDCIF	Parent Fur	iction		Header Template	None 🗸	All Files
Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Paren	t Xml Bro	wse	Footer Template	None 🗸	
Search	Block Field Pro	operties				•
Preferences	* Field Name	CUSTNO	7	* Data Type	Varchar2 🔽	Popup Edit Regd
DataSource DetaSource	Field Label	LBL_CUSTNO	7	DataSource	STTM_CUSTOMER	Required
LOV CUST	XSD Tag	CUSTNO	1	Max.Length	9	Visible
DataBlocks	Display Type	Text 🗸	_	* Field Size		Input by LOV Only
BLK_CUSTMRDTLS	Item Type	Database Item 🔽		* Column Name	CUSTOMER_NO	Calender Text
	Parent Field	~		Default Value		Select Multiple
	Related Block	~		Copy From Block	~	Uppercase Only
LANG	Related Field	*		Copy From Field	*	Checked
FNAME	TextArea Rows		7	TextArea Cols		Read Only
Screens Screens	Min.Val		1	Max.Val		Subsystem Dependent
Actions	Max.Decimals		ī	Image Source		Not Reg In Xsd
CallForms	LOV Name	LOV_CUST 🗸	0	ff Line LOV Name	~	Block PK Field
LaunchForms	Global LOV		7 Ξ (Global Offline LOV		E LOV Validation Regd
Summary	Fieldset Name	FST_CUST	1	Accesskey Code		
	Preview Value		1	Mask Id		> =
	Custom Attributes	Events Bind Variable	s Return	Fields		
		10 11				+ -
		Attribute Name		1	Attribute value	Selected

4.6.1 Field Name

Name of the field and same name will be used in front and back end units generated. Name of the field can be changed by renaming the field

4.6.2 Field Label

This will be defaulted when field is added, label code also be added using the list of values. This value will be used for the label of the field in the screen.

Note: If you enter the LBL code manually, it should be with below given format

"LBL_ xsd tag Name"

4.6.3 XSD Tag

It will be defaulted field is added and whenever label code got modified. This value is used in the xsd's as xsd tag and same will be used for web service.

4.6.4 Display Type

Pre-defined values will be available in the select box for this field. Value can be selected on requirement. This is the value which decides the display of the field in the screen where it is a check box, Drop down box or a radio so on.

4.6.5 <u>Item Type</u>

The value of this field will be defaulted to Database Item, if the field has taken from the data source, or default values are Control and Desc if the field is a UI field.



The field will be generated in the package and front end (SYS.js) only if the item type is Database item.

4.6.6 Text Area Rows

If the display type is text area, height of the text area can be mentioned. Using this field user can increase the height of the Text Area in the screen.

4.6.7 Text Area Columns

If the display type is text area, width of the text area can be mentioned. Using this field user can increase the width of the Text Area in the screen.

4.6.8 Related Block:

An amount field can be related to a particular currency field, and this field captures the block name where the currency field is present.

4.6.9 Related Field

Subsequent to the above field (Related Block), a field can be selected as a related field for an amount field.

Selected Block's (Related Block) fields will be available in the select box.

4.6.10 Parent Field

If the Item Type of the selected field is Desc, a parent field should be attached and the selected parent field should have a LOV attached to it. And the current field should be one of the return fields of the attached LOV.

This feature is provided to avoid Query data sources and should be used for all description Fields. If a particular field is selected as "Description Field" in OPEN DEVELOPMENT, The LOV for the Parent field should not have any Control Item as a bind variable.

4.6.11 Min. Val

Minimum value to a number field can be mentioned, tool will generate the validation of the min value for the filed in both front and back end.

4.6.12 Max. Val

Maximum value to a number field can be mentioned, tool will generate the validation of the max value for the field in both front and back end.

4.6.13 Max Decimals

Max Decimals to a number or amount field can be mentioned.

4.6.14 LOV Name

All the LOV names will be available which are defined in ListOfValues definition,



A LOV can be selected and attached to a field.

4.6.15 Global LOV

Global LOV can be maintained across function id and same can be attached to a field. This will reduce development time. LOV can be selected from list of values attached to the field .These LOV are handled by the FLEXCUBE Infra.

Global LOVs are stored in CSTB_LOV_INFO WITH FUCNTION ID AS COMMON .

4.6.16 Offline LOV Name

These LOV will be used by the Branch function id if the branch is in offline mode, offline LOV will be used. All the LOV will be populated which are defined in the LOV definition screen.

Both offline and online LOV can be maintained for the same field.

4.6.17 Offline Global LOV

Defining of these LOV remain same as Global LOV, and functionality is same as offline LOV

In a given point in time tool will allow the user to select either local LOV (LOV Name, Offline LOV Name) or Global LOV (Global LOV, Global Offline LOV).

Return fields and bind variables can be defined in the "Bind variables" tab and "Return fields" tab as shown below.

The button Default From Low Definition will populate the bind variables and return fields from the LOV definition.

Any field across the blocks can be attached as LOV bind variable or return field.



Oracle Flexcube MICON- Function	on Generation- Radi	hakrishna-Kernel-11.1-F	c111sqahost-English	Webpage Dialog	
DRACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ient And Integration C	onsole			r 🖩 7 🖡 🗣 🛇 🖺
Action New 💌	Function	Type Parent 🗸	Function Categ	gory Maintenance 💌	Caliform Type 🛛 Data 💌
Function Id STDCIF	Parent Fu	nction	Header Temp	late None 💌	All Files
Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Parer	nt Xml Brov	vse Footer Temp	late None 👻	
Search	Block Field Pr	operties			
Preferences	* Field Name	CUSTTYPE	* Data Typ	e CHAR	Popup Edit Regd
DataSource	Field Label	LBL_CUSTTYPE	▶ DataSourc	e STTM_CUSTOMER	Required
	XSD Tag	CUSTTYPE	Max.Lengt	th 1	Visible
CUSTOMER_TYPE	Display Type	Text 🗸	* Field Siz	te	Input by LOV Only
COUNTRY	Item Type	Database Item 🗸	Column Nam	e CUSTOMER_TYPE	Calender Text
LANGUAGE	Parent Field	~	Default Valu	ie	Select Multiple
I istOf/alues	Related Block	~	Copy From Bloc	ck 🗸	Uppercase Only
LOV_CUST	Related Field	~	Copy From Fiel	ld 🗸	Checked
DataBlocks	TextArea Rows		TextArea Col	Is	Read Only
BLK_CUSTMRDTLS	Min.Val		 Max.V:	al	Subsystem Dependent
	Max.Decimals		- Image Sourc	;e	Not Reg In Xsd
CNTY	LOV Name	LOV_CUST V	Off Line LOV Nam	ie 🗸	Block PK Field
LANG	Global LOV		Global Offline LO	N	▶ LOV Validation Regd
FNAME Records	Fieldset Name	FST_CUST	Accesskey Cod	le	
FieldSets	Preview Value		 Mask !	Id	×E
Carlons Carlos					
CallForms	Custom Attributes	Events Bind Variables	Return Fields		
LaunchForms	Bind Variables Map	ping			Default From Lov Definition
		Block Name		Bind Variable	Datatype
	BLK_CUS	TMRDTLS	~	CUSTNO V	STRING

4.6.18 Field Set Name

It is an info field, tells user about the name of the field set where the field is selected.non editable field.

4.6.19 Data Type

Non editable field, value will be defaulted while adding the field this values be considered while generating the packages and xsd's for web service.

4.6.20 Data source

Information field to the user, value will be defaulted while adding the field if the field is database item and value cannot be changed .

4.6.21 Max Length

The max length of column will be defaulted while adding a field and it can't be overwritten.

This value will be considered for the field max length of the designed screen. It means, at the run time system will not allow the user to enter the text more than this length.

The value of the field will be changed from data source column properties.

4.6.22 Field Size

Value will be defaulted while adding the field and same can be modified. This is the size which will reflect in the screen for the field.



4.6.23 Column Name

Non editable field, value will be defaulted while adding the field if the field is database item.

4.6.24 Default Value

A default value can be given to the selected field , system will use the default value at the run time and default value will be stored in the generated front end unit , it will not available in the generated packages.

4.6.25 Copy from Block, Copy from Field

At the run time field values can be copied from one field to another field, without writing extra code, same can be achieved by selecting copy from block and copy from field.

4.6.26 Access key Code

A short cut key can be created to a field by adding the value in this field and created short cut key can be used at the run time to access the field.

4.7 Custom Attributes TAB

If a screen has the select box (Drop down box) or the radio button , name and value pair should be maintained for such fields , same can be captured under customer Attributes tab of the field properties as shows in the below screen.

🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Function	on Generation- Radh	akrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fo	:111s	qahost-English We	ebpage Dialog			
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Co	onsole				Ľ	🖫 🎸 📑	🔷 🚫 🔛
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:/DEV/STDCIF	Function Parent Fun Paren	Type Parent txml Brow	se	Function Categor Header Template Footer Template	Maintenance V None V None V		Callform Type	e Data 🛩
Search	Block Field Pro	operties						f
Preferences The customer is structure of th	* Field Name Field Label XSD Tag Display Type Item Type Parent Field Related Block Related Field TextArea Rows Min.Val Max.Decimals LOV Name Global LOV Fieldset Name Preview Value	CNTY LBL_CNTY CheckBox v Database Item v v FST_CUST	×E	* Data Type DataSource Max Length • Field Size * Column Name Default Value Copy From Field TextArea Cols Max Val Image Source Off Line LOV Name Global Offline LOV Accesskey Code Mask Id	Varchar2 V STTM_CUSTOMER 3 COUNTRY		Popup Edi Required Cisible Input by L Calender Celender Checked Read Only Subsysten Not Req In Block PK F CUV Valida	t Reqd OV Only Text tiple a Only n Dependent I XSd Vield
Califorms Califorms LaunchForms Summary	Custom Attributes	Events Attribute Name	≥= Y ≥= N		Attribute value			Selected



4.7.1 Attribute Name

Captures the Name of the attribute and same can be selected from list of value attached to the field.

For Ex: For check box Name can be ON or OFF.

4.7.2 Attribute Value

Captures the value of the attribute and same can be selected from list of value attached to the field.

For Ex: For check box value can be Y or N.

4.7.3 Selected

If the selected check box is checked, the particular value be default value.

If display type is check Tool will default two row in the custom attributes tab with ON and OFF names, Y and N values.

Custom attributes cab be maintained if Display Type is check box, select and Radio.

4.8 Events Tab

Field events can be maintained in the events tab and same is show in the below screen.



🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	n Generation- Radl	akrishna-Ke	rnel-11.1-Fo	c111s	qahost-English Wet	bpage Dialog					
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Co	onsole						r 🖪 i	7 🖡	∿ 📎	×
Action New 🔽	Function	Type Parent	*		Function Category	Maintenance 🔽		Callfo	rm Type	Data 🗸	
Function Id STDCIF	Parent Fur	nction			Header Template	None 🗸				🗌 All Fi	les
Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Paren	it Xml	Brow	se	Footer Template	None 💌					
Search	Block Field Pro	operties									f
Preferences	* Field Name	BTN_PREF]	* Data Type	~		🗖 Poj	oup Edit	Regd	
DataSource JistOf/aluga	Field Label			7	DataSource			🗆 Re	quired		
DataBlocks	XSD Tag				Max.Length			🗹 Vis	ible		
BLK_CUSTMRDTLS	Display Type	Button	*		* Field Size			🗖 Ing	ut by LO	V Only	
CUSTNO	Item Type	Control 💌			* Column Name			🗆 Cal	ender Te	ext	
CUSTTYPE	Parent Field		¥		Default Value			🗆 Sel	ect Multij	ole	
LANG	Related Block		*		Copy From Block		*	🗆 Up	percase	Only	
FNAME	Related Field	*			Copy From Field	~		🗆 Ch	ecked		
BTN_PREF	TextArea Rows				TextArea Cols			🗆 Re	ad Only		
Greens FieldSets	Min.Val				Max.Val			🗆 Sul	osystem	Dependen	t
Actions	Max.Decimals				Image Source			🗆 Not	Req In)	(sd	
CallForms	LOV Name		~		Off Line LOV Name	*		🗆 Blo	ck PK Fi	eld	
LaunchForms	Global LOV			7	Global Offline LOV		7	🗆 L0	/ Validat	ion Reqd	
Gunnary	Fieldset Name]	Accesskey Code						
	Preview Value]	Mask Id		7				
	Custom Attributes	Events									
										+ -	
	Event N	ame	Function I	lame	Event Type	Button Screen	CallFor	m Name	Scree	n Name	
	onclick	✓ fn_	_postLoad()		Normal 🗸	CVS_MAIN V					

4.8.1 Event Name

A pre-defined java script event can be attached to the field and same can be selected.

4.8.2 Function Name

A function name should be mentioned for event, same function should be maintained in the function id java script or in the infra java script files.

Note: Not required to mention the function name if the event type is call form or sub screen.

4.8.3 Event type

A pre-define event type can be selected and event type are as below

- **Normal**: On selected event the mentioned function will be called.
- Callform: On selected event call form will be launched.
- **Subfunction**: On selected event another main form will be launched.
- Subscreen: On selected event sub screen will be launched.

4.8.4 Button Screen:

Call form button can be added to main or sub screens and same can be maintained using button screen filed. This field will be populated with all the screens created.



4.8.5 Call form Name:

If the event type is call form, call form Name should be maintained and value would be the call form function id name

4.8.6 Screen Name:

If the event type is call form or sub screen, screen name should be maintained and same screen will be launched for the event attached.

4.9 Screens

Here in this section Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console, Screen layout has to be designed and below is the Procedure to do the same.

By right clicking on "Screens" of the Tree portion of the Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console, screen will be added.

Below is the screen where the screen properties can be maintained

🙋 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	on Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fc11	1sqahost-English Webpage Dialog	
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	nent And Integration Console		r 🖬 🎸 📕 🔷 🖂
Action New Function Id STDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function	Function Category Maintenance Header Template None	Callform Type Data 💌
Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Parent Xml Browse	Footer Template None	
Search	Screen Details		F
Preferences ListOfValues DataBlocks DataBlocks Coreens Coreens Core	Screen Name CVS_MAIN Screen Title LBL_CUSTMERDTLS > Screen Type Template	Main Screen No Screen Size Small Exit Button Type Default Can	populate + -
 ₩ → HEADER ₩ → BODY ₩ → FOOTER FieldSets → Actions → CallForms → LaunchForms → Summary 	Arg Name Source Block	Source Field Arg Value Target Bio	ick Target Field

4.9.1 Screen Name

This field value will be defaulted when screen is added and it is a non editable field.

4.9.2 Screen Title

This field will have a label code for the screen title to be displayed. Label code can be selected from list of values button.



4.9.3 Screen Type

This value should be always Template, Tool have template based approach to design the screen. That is, to design the screen user has to create sections of the screen depends on the requirement and each section should have partitions and each partition will have field sets, and all the fields will fall under the field sets, this is the template and same should be followed for all the screens in the FLEXCUBE.

4.9.4 Main Screen

One main screen is compulsory to design a screen. If the selected screen is the main screen then select the value as "Yes" else "No". If the screen is main screen, only that screen will be launched from FLEXCUBE.

4.9.5 Screen size

Depends on the number of fields of the screen size can be selected. Available sizes are Small, Medium and large.

4.9.6 Exit Button Type

This field tells about exit and ok buttons to the screen, if you want to have only cancel button then select Default cancel, none option also available.

4.10 Tabs

When user creates a screen in the Open Development, Tool will create three default portions in the screen

- Header
- Body
- Footer

FLEXCUBE screens are divided into three portions, Header, Body and Footer and the all portions can have tabs and inside tabs fields.

Each portion will have default tabs. Along with these default tabs you can create tabs



Oracle Flexcube MICON- Function	n Generation- Radhakrisl	hna-Kernel-11.1-Fc111sc	ahost-English Webj	page Dialog		
Action New M Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:/DEV/STDCIF	ent And Integration Console Function Type Parent Function Parent Xml	Parent V	Function Category Header Template Footer Template	Maintenance V None V	Callform Type	Data V All Files
Search Preferences DataSource ListOfValues DataBlocks Screens HEADER BODY FOTR FieldSets Actions CallForms Summary	Tab Details Screen Name Tab Label Tab Type	CVS_MAIN	Tab A Tab A	Name Access Key	TAB_MAIN DpndtFilds	ίτ. Ι

Below is the screen where tab properties can be defined

4.10.1 <u>Screen Name</u>

This is information filed and the value will be defaulted when tab is added, and name will be name of the screen under which screen, the tab has been created and it is a non editable field

4.10.2 Tab Name

This is information filed and the value will be defaulted when tab is added, it is a non editable field.

4.10.3 Tab Label

This field allows you to add a Name of the Tab, label code can be selected from the list of values.

4.10.4 Tab Access Key

Tool will allow you to select a short cut key to the tab and same value can be used at run time to access the tab.

4.11 Section and Partitions

Section can be created under each tab. Number of section vary from screen to screen .sections can of any number.

Partitions can be added to the each section, depends on the screen size (Small, Medium and Large) tool will allow you to add partitions and sub partitions.

Partitions can be added using 🛨 💻 buttons.



Coracle Elexcube MICON- Europtic	n Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Ec111sc	ahost-English Wehnage Dialog	
	ent And Integration Console	and all and a start of a start of	R II 77 R & O II
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Maintenance Header Template None Footer Template None	Caliform Type Data 💌
Search	Section Details		f
 Preferences DataSource ListOf/alues DataBlocks 	Tab Name TAB_MAIN Section Name SEC_1	Screen Portion	Body
CVS_MAIN	Partition Details		
			+-
	Partition SI No	Partition Name *	Width Subpartitions

4.12 Field sets

Field set is a logical set of fields which would appear together in one partition of the screen layout.

Field sets can be created using Open Development Tree, by right clicking on Field sets.

Below is the screen where field set properties can be defined.

🔊 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	on Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fc111sq	ahost-English Webpage Dialog	
	nent And Integration Console		r 🖬 🌮 📑 ᡐ 🛇 📖
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Maintenance 💌 Header Template None 💌 Footer Template None 💌	Callform Type Data 💌
Search	FieldSet Properties		
Preferences DataSource DataSource DataSource DataSource DataBlocks DataBlock	Fieldset Name FST_CUST Fieldset Label FST_CUST Data Block BLK_CUSTMRDTLS Multi Record No Fieldset Height No Of Rows Data Block Fields	Screen Name CVS_MAIN V Screen Portion Body V Tab Name TAB_MAIN V Section Name SEC_1 V Partition Name SEC1_PART1 V Fieldset Width	I♥ [Horizontal Fieldset] ☐ ReadOnly ☐ Navigation Button
	LANG FNAME BTN_PREF		Subpartition Name



4.12.1 Field set Name

Non editable field, this can be changed using rename option of the Tool.

4.12.2 Field set Label

All field set can have a title to them, and same can be mentioned in this field as label code. Label code can be selected using the list of values attached to the field.

4.12.3 Data Block

A block can be selected among populated, all field will be populated which are belong to the selected block to add to the field set.

4.12.4 Multi Record

A non editable field, this will be defaulted when block selected. This is the parameter defined at the block properties level.

4.12.5 <u>View Type</u>

View type of the field set can be selected here depends on the requirement, single or Multiple view.

4.12.6 Field set Height

Captures the height of the fields set.

4.12.7 Field Set Width

Holds the width of the fields set.

4.12.8 <u>No of Rows:</u>

If view type is multiple and number of rows in the multiple table can be decided using No of rows field and this is optional field, Tool will default to 15 rows, if the field value is null.

4.12.9 Screen Name

This field captures the name of the screen where the particular field set to be added.

4.12.10 Screen Portion

This field captures the name of the screen portion where the particular field set to be added.

4.12.11 <u>Tab Name</u>

This field captures the name of the tab under which the selected field set to be added.

4.12.12 Section Name

This field captures the name of the section in which the selected field set to be added.



4.12.13 Partition Name

This field captures the name of the partition in which the selected field set to be added.

4.12.14 Horizontal FieldSet

A field set can be horizontal if this flag is selected.

A horizontal field set will have fields horizontally arranged, where as in normal field sets all the fields will be arranged vertically by default.

4.12.15 Read Only

Entire block can be made read only , if this check box is selected.

4.12.16 Navigation Button

This is applicable only for multi record is yes and selected view type is Single. If this check box is selected, tool will add previous and next buttons to the screen.

4.12.17 Data Block Fields

Depends on the block selected this field will be populated with all the fields which are belong the blocks and not attached to any of the field set.

4.12.18 Field Set Fields

Fields can be selected to the field set from the Data block Fields.

4.12.19 Sub Partition Name

If the selected partition has any sub partitions created, then sub partition field will be populated with number of the sub partitions, field can be selected to particular sub partition.

4.13 Actions

Web Service related information and FLEXCUBE amendable fields can be captured in the actions screen show below.



Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:DEVISTDCIF	ment And Integrati Fur Parei	on Console Iction Type Parent It Function Parent Xml Brown	Function Category Maintenance V Header Template None V Footer Template None V	Callform T	ype Data 🗹
earch	Form Actio	ons			
Preferences	XSD Type Ide	ntifier Customer	Service Name FCUBSCustomerService 75 0	peration Id Customer	
DataBlocks	Web Service	Action Code	Operation Code	Action Stage Type	+ -
Screens		QUERY	QueryCustomer		Amendables
Actions	v	NEW	CreateCustomer		Amendables
CallForms	•	MODIFY	ModifyCustomer		Amendables
Summary	•	AUTHORIZE	AuthorizeCustomer		Amendables
	v	DELETE	DeleteCustomer		Amendables
	v	CLOSE	CloseCustomer		Amendables
	•	REOPEN	ReopenCustomer		Amendables
		REVERSE		Π	Amendables
		ROLLOVER		Π	Amendables
		CONFIRM		Π	Amendables
		LIQUIDATE		Γ	Amendables

4.13.1 XSD Type Identifier

This field captures the name, using this name xsd type will be generated for the function, and tool will generate xsd file names using this name. This Should be a descriptive code of the Function being developed.

4.13.2 Service Name

Web service should be registered with a server Name and that server name can be mentioned here, and service name can be selected using the list of values attached to the field.

Tool will use the server name while generating the xsd files.

4.13.3 Operation Id

Each operation code will be defined using the operation id, the name can a self descriptive.

4.13.4 Web Service

User can decide what all the operations are available for web server by selecting this check box and tool will generate xsd only for those operations.

4.13.5 Action Code

Pre-define actions will be available for the action code. These are the operations which are available in the FLEXCUBE.



4.13.6 Operation Code

If the web service is selected, the operation code will be defaulted and operation code will be the combination of action code and Operation Id and same operation code will be used to perform operations for web service.

4.14 Amendable:

In FLEXCUBE amendable fields are pre-defined and those fields can be modified at the time of modification operation and same can be maintained using the Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console at the time of designing the screen.

Amendable fields can be maintained at actions level, below is the screen where amendable can be maintained

🗿 Amendable Details NEW Web Page Dialog			
Data Blocks	DataBlock Fields		
BLK_CONTRACT_DETAILS	New Allowed Delete Allowed All Records	Mandatory	
	Field Name	Amendable 🚽	•
BLK_ADVICE_DETAILS BLK_DOCUMENTS_DETAILS	LATVERNO		
BLK_SHIPMENT_DETAILS	VERNO	— –	
BLK_GOODS_DETAILS BLK_TRACER_DETAILS	PRDCD		
BLK_DRAFTS	OPERCD		
BLK_PARTY_OTHER_ADDRESSES	BTN_P		
BLK_CLAUSE_DETAILS	PRDDESC		
BLK_DRAFT_DETAILS	PRDTP		
BLK_SUMMARY_DETAIL	CONREFNO		
BLK_TRANSDET	USEREFNO		
	EXTREFNO		
	SOURCE		
	BOOKDT		
	LATEVNSEQNO		
	BRANCH		
	MODUCD		•
		Ok Cancel	

4.14.1 Data blocks

This field contains all the blocks which are created for the screen.

4.14.2 New allowed

A new row can be added to a multiple entry block at the time of modification, if new allowed check box is selected.

4.14.3 Delete Allowed

A row can be deleted from a multiple entry block at the time of modification, if Delete allowed check box is selected.



4.14.4 All Records

All the rows can be deleted from a multiple entry block at the time of modification, if All Records check box is selected.

4.14.5 Mandatory

In xsd a node (element) can be mandatory, if the Mandatory check box is selected.

4.14.6 Field Name

Contains all the fields of a block which is selected

4.14.7 Amendable

A field can be amendable if the check box is checked.

4.15 Call Forms

Call forms details of a function can be maintained using call forms screen .below is the screen for the same.

🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Function	ı Generation- Radhakrishna	-Kernel-11.1-Fc111sqa	host-English Webpag	ge Dialog		
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Manageme	nt And Integration Console			I	1 🖩 🎸 🗄	🖡 🔦 🚫 🔛
Action New 🗸	Function Type Pa	arent 🔽	Function Category Ma	aintenance 🐱	Callform Ty	pe Data 🗸
Function Id STDCIF	Parent Function		Header Template No	one 🗸		All Files
Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Parent Xml	Browse	Footer Template No	one 💌		
Search	Call Form Details					
Preferences				Screen Ar	guments Depend	dent Fields 🕂 🗕
DataSource IstofValues	Function ID	Parent DataBlock	Parent Data Source	Relation		Relation Type
DataBlocks	MICTRMIS	BLK_CUSTMRDTLS V	STTM_CUSTOMER V		P	One To One 🔽
Creens	CFCTRCHG	BLK_CUSTMRDTLS 🗸	STTM_CUSTOMER 💌		9	One To One 💌
Actions	CFCTRCOM	BLK_CUSTMRDTLS 🐱	STTM_CUSTOMER 💌		(One To One 🖌
Summary	<u>x</u>]					л

4.15.1 Function ID

It captures the call form function id .

4.15.2 Parent Block

Parent block can be mentioned for the call form master block.



4.15.3 Parent Data source

Parent data source can be mentioned for the call form master block.

4.15.4 Relation

There should be a relation between call form data source and main form data source and same can be maintained in the field.

4.15.5 Relation Type

Relation type can be maintained using "One To One" or "One to Many" values.

4.15.6 Display Type

A call form will be lunched from a main form by clicking a button or a tab, and same can be maintained in the field.

If the type is tab, at the run time on click of tab system will include the call form into the main screen as tab. The tab name under which the cal has to appear should be selected in this case.

4.16 Screen Arguments:

Whenever a Sub-Screen or Callform is launched from a main screen, there would be a necessity to send a value from calling function to the callform or sub screen, it is generally done by coding in function id.js, now Rad gives you an option to specify the screen arguments information, and thus it will reduce the code in function id js.

The button Screen Arguments will launch a screen argument window as show below,



It will allow user to enter Screen Argument Name, and select Source block and field from which the value has to be taken. The user also has an option to directly give the value for the Screen Argument in the Argument value filed.



4.16.1 Dependent Fields:

After visiting some Sub-Systems, some Sub-System sensitive fields should not be allowed to change, it is generally done by coding in function id.js, now Rad gives you an option to specify the subsystem dependent information at callform level itself, and thus it will reduce the code in function id js.

The button DpndtFlds will launch a Dependent field's window as show below,

🗿 Dependends On Web Page Dialog 🛛 🛛 🔀						
Fields						
					Populate + -	
	Block Name		Field Name			
~	BLK_CONTRACT_DETAILS	~	VERNO	~		
Services						
50111000					Ropulate -	
	Sanica				Populate	
					Ok Cancel	

It will allow user to give Dependent fields by selecting block and field name. The user can also specify the Service name if the callform depends on any other services.

4.17 Launchforms

Launchforms are like callforms which can be launched from main screen, Launchforms third character need not be 'C'.



Launchforms details of a function can be maintained using Launchforms screen .below is the screen for the same.

Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	n Generation- Developer-Kernel-11.0-Fccdev-English	Web Page Dialog	
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Console		r 🖬 7 📑 🔦 🛇 🖆
Action Load Function Id LCDTRONL Save Xml Path \\\cvrce0089\Newdevel	Function Type Parent Parent Function lopen Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Transaction V Header Template None V	Caliform Type Data 💌 🗌 All Files
Search	LaunchForm Details		۲.
 Preferences DataSource ListOfValues DataBlacke 		Function ID	SceArgs + -
 ■ DataBillocks ■ Screens ■ FieldSets ■ Actions ■ Califorms ■ Launehörms ■ Summary 	CSDEVENT		

4.17.1 Function ID

It captures the call form function id .

4.17.2 Screen Arguments

Whenever a Callform or launchform is launched from a main screen, there would be a necessity to send a value from calling function to the Callform or launchform, it is generally done by coding in function id.js, now Rad gives you an option to specify the screen arguments information, and thus it will reduce the code in function id js.



The button Screen Arguments will launch a screen argument window as show below,

🖹 Ca	llfrom Arguments '	Web Page Dialog		D
				Populate Reset
	Arg Name	Source Block	Source Field	Arg Value
~	CONTREF	BLK_CONTRACT_DETAILS	CONREFNO	
•				
				Ok Cancel

It will allow user to enter Screen Argument Name, and select Source block and field from which the value has to be taken. The user also has an option to directly give the value for the Screen Argument in the Argument value filed.

4.18 Summary

Summary screen can be design in the Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console using below screen.

🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	n Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fc111sqa	ihost-English Webpage Dialog	
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Console		r 🖬 7 🗣 💊 🔛
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XIIL Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Maintenance 💙 Header Template None 💙 Footer Template None 💙	Caliform Type Data 💌
Search	Summary Details Title LBL_SUMMARY 72 Data Blocks BLK_CUSTMRDTLS Data Source STTM_CUSTOMER Data Block Fields Custom Buttons Data Block Fields Data Block Fields	Default Where Clause Default Order By Summary Type Summary Type CUSTNO CUSTNPE CUSTNPE CUSTNPE CUSTNPE FNAME	Ouery Image: Constraint of the second sec



4.18.1 <u>Title</u>

Summary screen title can be maintained here using a label code, and label code can be selected from the list of values attached to the field.

4.18.2 Data Block

This field will have all the data blocks of Multi Record "No" parameter of the Block Properties. On selecting of the data block all the data source will be populated to data source field which are attached to the selected data block.

4.18.3 Data Source

Captures the data source name of the summary, on which query should happen for summary.

4.18.4 Default where Clause

Captures the default where clause for summary query.

4.18.5 Default Order By

Captures the default order by for summary query.

4.18.6 Summary Type

Summary screen can be of any type Summary, Query, Bulk Authorization and upload and same can be maintained here.

4.19 Custom Buttons

Buttons can be added to summary screen using "Custom Buttons" Tab of the summary screen of Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console, same is shown below

a Oracle Flexcube MICON- Functio	n Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fc	111sqahost-English Webpage Dialo	e 🗖 🖂 🛛
ORACLE: FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Console		R 🖬 🎸 📑 🔦 🚫 🔛
Action New Function Id STDCIF Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Function Type Parent Parent Function Parent Xml Brows	Function Category Maintenan Header Template None Footer Template None	Cellform Type Data
Search	Summary Details		
Search Preferences DataSource LIStOValues Courses FieldSets CallForms Culfforms Summary	Summary Details Title EBL_SUMMARY #E Data Block BLK_CUSTWRDTLS Data Source STTM_CUSTOMER Data Block Fields Custom Buttons Number of Rows I V Number of Buttons/R Field Name Fiel	Default Where Clause Default Order By Summary Type w Label LBL_EXPORT	mmary



4.19.1 Number of Rows

Adding buttons to the summary screen can be of any number, and buttons cab arranged in more than one row same can be maintained using number of Rows field.

Max rows cab be added is 5 rows.

4.19.2 Number of Buttons/Row

Number of Buttons per Row can be maintained.



5. Extended search option

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console give you extended searching option through which a block field can be searched in Function generation link.

5.1 Locate Field:

Upon right clicking on a block filed the user will get a Locate Field option in the menu as shown in the below screen,

a Oracle Flexcube MICON- Function Generation- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11.1-Fc111sqahost-English Webpage Dialog 📃 🔲 🔀							
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration Co	onsole				R	📓 🖗 📑 🚳 🔛
Action New 💙	Function	Type Parent 💌		Function Category	/ Maintenance 💌		Callform Type Data 🐱
Function Id STDCIF	Parent Fun	iction		Header Template	None 🗸		All Files
Save XML Path D:\DEV\STDCIF	Paren	t Xml Brow	se	Footer Template	None 💌		
Search	Block Field Pro	operties					Ē
Preferences	* Field Name	CUSTNO		* Data Type	Varchar2 🗸		Popup Edit Regd
DataSource	Field Label	LBL_CUSTNO		DataSource	STTM_CUSTOMER	1	Required
LISTOTVAIUES	XSD Tag	CUSTNO		Max.Length	9		Visible
DataBlocks	Display Type	Text 🗸		* Field Size			Input by LOV Only
BLK_CUSTMRDTLS	Item Type	Database Item 🔽		* Column Name	CUSTOMER NO	1	Calender Text
Delete	Parent Field	~		Default Value		1	Select Multiple
CUS Rename	Related Block	*		Copy From Block	~	-	Linnercase Only
LAN Locate Field	Related Field	~		Copy From Field	~		Checked
FNAME	TextArea Rows			TextArea Cols		1	Read Only
BTN_PREF	Min.Val			Max.Val		1	Subsystem Dependent
Greens Greens Greens	Max Decimals			Image Source		1	Not Reg In Xsd
Actions	LOV Name	LOV CUST V		Off Line LOV Name	*	1	Block BK Field
CallForms	Global LOV		2	Global Offline LOV		73	LOV Validation Rend
LaunchForms	Fieldset Name	FST CUST		Accesskev Code			
Summary	Preview Value			Mask Id		75	
						لسار	
	Custom Attributes	Events Bind Variables	Ret	turn Fields			
							+ -
	Event Na	me Function Name		Event Type Butte	on Screen CallForm	Name	e Screen Name



On clicking the locate field option, FLEXCUBE MICON launches the screen which has the field in Preview mode and highlights the field and show it as shown below.



5.2 Going to Block Field from Preview

Upon double clicking on a filed in Screen in Preview mode ,FLEXCUBE MICON Closes the preview window and goes to the block field and displays its attributes.



6. Child and Parent functionality

Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console has the capability to support Child Screens. The concept is very similar to inheritance in OOPs and a child screen can be derived from a parent screen.

Once a child screen is inherited a parent screen it gets all the sections from the parent.

Below are the possible operations on a child screen in Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console.

- New data Sources can be added
- New data Blocks can be added
- Existing data Sources cannot be deleted
- Existing data Blocks cannot be deleted
- Screens and field sets can be completely modified

Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console would track any modification done in child and stores separately. Whenever the parent screen gets modified, its Childs can be refreshed with the parent.

During Refresh Open Development would do the below

- Copies the block field properties from the parent child only if none of the field properties are modified in Child
- If any property of a Block field is modified, it retains the entire set of block fields from child itself.
- Copies the new data sources, fields, LOVS from the parent to child
- For screens and Field sets, Refresh does not alter the child screen and field sets .i.e any
 modifications done to the parent screen after the child is inherited would not get
 propagated to the child.



7. Open Development- generated Files

7.1.1 Front End Units

Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console generates the below front end units.

- <Function_id>. Xml
- <Function_id>_SYS.JS
- <Function_id>_KERNLE.JS
- <Function_id>_CLUSTER.JS
- <Function_id>_CUSTOM.JS

7.1.2 Back End units

Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console generates the below packages for maintenance Functions

- Main package
- Kernel package
- Cluster package
- Custom Package
- Static data Scripts
- XSDs

All the package specifications and package bodies will be generated only when a new function id is created for the first time in Open Development. Subsequent to that, only Main package gets generated. In case all the package is required developers can check the "All Packages" check box in the header. As many functions are existing function ids and are being converted, when the function id is converted for the first time, developers should check this check box to get Kernel, Cluster and Custom packages.

Based on the Release type and Action Code Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console controls the file generation as below

7.1.3 Release Based

For Kernel release, Open Development would generate all files for Child releases (Cluster and Custom) also. Similarly while working for a cluster release tool generates Custom files as well.

7.1.4 Action Based

In case of New Tool generates all the files based on the release type as explained above. IN case of Reloading an existing screen, Open Development only generates the below files

- Main Package Specification
- Main Package Body
- Static data Scripts
- XSDS



Kernel, Cluster and Custom packages would get generated only while creating a new form based on the applicability of the Release .i.e. Kernel, Cluster and custom for Kernel release, Cluster and Custom for Cluster Release and only Custom Package for Custom Release. This is because these are the user hook packages and developers would have modified these packages. Re-Generating these packages would nullify the changes made by the developers if loaded in the database.

In case there is a need to generate these packages on load action, the "All Packages" should be checked. If this flag is checked Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console would generate all the files applicable to the release type.



8. Standard Naming Conventions

There are some standard naming conventions to be followed while creating objects in Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console.

8.1 Screen Name

Screen names should stats with "CVS_" i.e. "CVS_<Name of the screen>"

8.2 Block Name

Block Name should start with BLK_ and should be followed by the XSD Node. For example if the XSD Node is Product-Details Block name should be BLK_PRODUCT_DETAILS.

Basically its Upper case and "-"Replaced with "_".

8.3 Field Set Names

Field set names should stats with "FST_" i.e. "FST_<Name of the Field set>"

8.4 LOV names

LOV names should stats with "LOV_" i.e. "LOV_<Name of the LOV>"



9. Conversion procedure

Below is some briefing on how convert the screens to New Open Development

- 1. Launch Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console and use Data Extraction from OLD Open Development xml.
- 2. This will populate the table CSTB_DATA_DICTIONARY with all the tables and columns used in the Open Development Xml
- 3. There is another column in the table FILED_NAME . This field should contain the XSD_TAG of the column name and this should be populated manually by the TL/PL who can give a reasonable short and intuitive name Below are some of the Examples
 - CODE CD
 - BRANCH BRN
 - DATE DT
 - CREDIR CR
 - DEBIR DR etc
- 4. It also populates another table RDTB_OLD_Open Development_LABELS which gives the Labels used in the OLD Open Development Xml. This data can be sued while populating the Label Descriptions
- 5. Now Load the OLD Open Development Xml in New Open Development. Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console Automatically converts into the NEW Open Development Format and picks the FIELD_NAMES from data Dictionary and uses them as the BLOCK Filed Names. The same would be populated as the XSD Tag as well.
- System would automatically default the label also which is nothing but LBL_<FIELD_NAME>. As mentioned in point 4, Descriptions can be picked up from RDTB_OLD_Open Development_LABELS.
- 7. After conversion, there some irregularities (Primarily because of Incorrect Block definitions in OLD Open Development). Please look for the below irregularities
 - In case a particular Data block contains more than one data source, both should either be Multi record or both should be single Record. And the Block also should also be either Multi or Single based on the Data Sources.
 - Check for incorrect Clubbing of Blocks. i.e. as the Block name is going to be the XSD Node name, we can only club functionally related data sources only. For example in product, CSTM_PRODUCT and the Module level product Master (say LCTM_PRODUCT_DEFINITION) can be defined as one Block in Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console.
 - Check for Unnecessary UI fields.
- 8. Block Name Should Start with BLK_ and it should be same as XSD Node name for Example BLK_PRODUCT_DETAILS ----- Product-Details
- 9. Don't use UI fields as Bind Variables while defining LOVS
- 10. Avoid using Query data Sources. Instead Description Fields can be used for showing Descriptions



- 11. In Actions tab, in case web services are required, give the below
 - XSD Identifier Short Description for the Function ID LCDPRMNT LCProduct
 - Service Name Service Name
 - Operation ID It is a critical parameter and which would indicate the Operation of the Function. For example LCDPRMNT is Product, LCDCONON is Contract Etc. Please note that in most cases module need not be given as there may not multiple Contracts /products within the same service. In case where multiple Products under the same service like (Deal, Portfolio etc) , please include a Prefix to the Identifier. For example for EDDDLPRD Identifier can be EDDDLPRD and Operation Id can be Deal Product. Please ensure that the Operation Id is in Sentence Case .
 - ON giving the above Parameters, System would automatically defaults the Operation Code.
- 12. Please ensure loading and check in of all INCS generated from Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console.
- 13. Don't use UI fields as Bind Variables while defining LOVS
- 14. Remove LOV Validations from the addon package. Please ensure these are present in Main Package before removing the validations from Addon package.



10. Refresh

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console allows upgrading the base version by Refreshing the base version, the following types of Refresh are possible in Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console,

- Source Refresh
- Child Refresh

a Oracle Flexcube MICON- Child Refresh- Radhakrishna-Kernel-11,1-Fc111sqahost-English Webpage Dialog 🛁	
Source Folder Base Folder	Browse
	Refresh
	×
	Close

10.1 Source Refresh

The Source refresh is done based on the release; from Cluster release it allows you to refresh the Kernel and from Custom release it allows to refresh both Kernel and Cluster. The Source refresh can be done by clicking on the Source refresh link in the Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console, which will launch a new screen where you can specify the base and source path and click on the Refresh, which will indeed Refresh all the Open Development xmls in the source folder.

10.2 Child Refresh

The Child Refresh allows upgrading of all release respective changes; it refreshes all, Kernel, Cluster and Custom and upgrades all the releases of a Child function Id. The child refresh can be done by clicking on the child refresh link in the Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console, which will launch the below screen where you can specify the base and source path and click on the Refresh, which will indeed Refresh all the Open Development xmls in the source folder.



11. Screen customizer

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console allows certain users only to do UI changes, In that case the function generation screen will show only Datablocks, Screens and Fieldset nodes in the tree. And Screen would look as shown below,



The user will be allowed only to modify the layout of the screen.



12. Notification

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console Notification can be used to create the notification Open Development xml and the Notification screen is shown below

Ø Oracle Flexcube M	UCON- Notication M	aintance- Radhakrishna-Ke	rnel-11.1-Fc111sqahost-English	Webpage Dialog		
ORACLE [.]					🖬 7 🔒	◆ ◇ ■
Action Load 🛩 Not	ification Function AM	NFNONL Save Xml Path	NFC_UBS_V.UM_10.3.0.(🗹 All F	lles		
* Notification Code	NOTIF_AM_FUND			Module	AM 🗾	
Description	This is the notification	n indicating that a Fur 🗭		Module Description	n	9
Operation	Insert 🖌			Base Table	CSTB_CONTRACT	×E
Filter Type	Pisqi Block 🗸 🗸			PK Cols	CONTRACT_REF_NO	
Gateway Operation	QueryFund			PK Types	VARCHAR2	
Gateway Service	FCUBSAMService				Full Screen Reply	
Gateway IO Request	Fund-Online-IO				HO Only	
Filter Logic	Set \$NOTIFY To Y/N 8	& Refer Current Record as SCU	RRENT_RECORD			
	IF \$CURRENT_REC \$NOTIFY:='Y'; ELSE \$NOTIFY:='N'; END IF; RETURN TRUE;	ORD.MODULE_CODE = 'AM' TH	IEN		×	
	Web Service Tags				+ -	
	Order	Xsd Filed	Table Field	Data Typ	e	
	□ 1	FUNDID	FUND_REF_NO	VARCHAR2		
	□ 2	FCCREF	CONTRACT_REF_NO	VARCHAR2		

12.1 <u>Action</u>

It specifies the Action, New or Load.

12.2 Notification Function

Notification function is unique function id with 8 characters and 3rd character would be 'N'.

12.3 Notification Code

It stores the notification code.

12.4 Description

It stores the notification Description.

12.5 Operation

It stores the notification operation, it can be Insert or Delete or both.



12.6 Filter type

It stores the notification filter type, it can be plsql block or where clause.

12.7 Gateway Operation

It is used to specify the Gateway operation.

12.8 Gateway Service

It is used to specify the Gateway Service.

12.9 Gateway I/O Request

It is used to specify the Gateway I/O Request.

12.10 Notification Module

It is used to specify the Notification Module.

12.11 Base Table

It is used to specify the Base Table.

12.12 PK Cols

It is used to specify the Base Table PK Cols.

12.13 PK Types

It is used to specify the PK Cols's type.

12.14 Full Screen Reply

It is used to specify whether it Full screen reply or not.

12.15 HO Function

It is used to specify whether its Head Office function or not

12.16 Filter Logic

It is used to specify the Filter Logic.

12.17 Field Order

It is used to specify the field Order.



12.18 XSD Field

It is used to specify the XSD Field.

12.19 Table Field

It is used to specify the Table field.

12.20 Data Type

It is used to specify the Data Type.



13. Trigger Maintenance

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console Trigger Maintenance is used to Maintain Triggers for Notification, Trigger Maintenance Detail screen is shown below

🗿 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Notic	tion Maintance- Developer-Kernel-11.0-Fccdev-English Web Page Dialog	
ORACLE	🗋 🖬 77 77 🍙 📑 🦠 🛇 🛙	8
Triggers Triggers Triggers Summary	Trigger Code TRO_STPY Trigger Save Path Description Notification for Stop payment Trigger Time After ♥ Each Row Yes ♥ Base Table CATM_STOP_PAYMENTS PK Cols STOP_PAYMENT_NO PK Type VARCHAR2 Specific Trigger Trigger When Clause (new.auth_stat='A) Notification Code	
	Trigger Logic Set \$NOTIFY To YN IF NVL/cloid.once_auth, 'N) *> Y'THEN L_Operation = 'INSERT'; ELSE L_Operation = UPDATE'; END IF;	

13.1 Trigger Code

It Captures the trigger code.

13.2 Description

It captures the trigger Description.

13.3 Trigger Time

It captures when to fire the trigger, Before or after.

13.4 Each Row

It fires the trigger Each Row, if it is Yes.

13.5 Base Table

It is used to specify the Base Table.

13.6 PK Cols

It is used to specify the Base Table PK Cols.



13.7 PK Types

It is used to specify the PK Cols's type.

13.8 Trigger When clause

It Captures the Trigger when clause.

13.9 Specific Triggers

It is used to specify if it is a specific Trigger.

13.10 Notification Code

In case of Specific Triggers, it captures the Notification codes.

13.11 Trigger Logic

It is used to specify the Trigger Logic.

13.12 Summary

It is used to view the list of triggers available in GWTM_NOTIFICATION_TRIGGERS table. on Double-click of a row it launches the Detail screen.

Triggers Detat Summers	Trigg	ger Summary	25				
Sunners		rigger Code	25				
				Base Table	×E		
			Trigger Description	Base Table	Trigger When Clause	Specific Trigger	Notification Co
			2	CSTM PRODUCT			TEST
		TR CUSAC	- Trriger For Customer A	STTM CUST ACCOUN	(new auth_stat='A')	N	
		TRG CHBK	Notification for the chec	CATM CHECK BOOK	(new.auth_stat='A')	N	
	F	TRG_STPY	Notification for Stop pay	CATM_STOP_PAYMEN	(new.auth_stat='A')	N	
	F	TRG_LEAD	For notifying the creatio	STTM_LEAD_DETAILS	(new.auth_stat='A')	N	
	—	TRG_CONT	Trigger notification whe	CSTB_CONTRACT_EV	((new.auth_status = 'A')	N	
	F	TRG_CUST	Trigger For Customer	STTM_CUSTOMER	(new.auth_stat='A')	N	
	F	TRG_LDNW	For new Lead	LDTB_CONTRACT_MA		N	
	E	TRG_CLAC	Ioan Account events dia	CLTB_ACCOUNT_EVE	((new.auth_status = 'A')	N	
	F	TROTST		CSTM_PRODUCT		N	
	F	NEW_TEST	Test	CSTM_PRODUCT	Test	N	
							×



14. Bulk Generation

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console allows Bulk Generation of both front end and backend units for both New and Old Open Development Xmls, the Bulk Generation Screen is shown below

🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Bulk Generator- Radhakrishna-Kernel-1	1.1-Fc111sqahost-English Webpage Dialog	
Source Folder Browse Destination Folder	Browse	
Generate ☑ All ☑ Packages & XSDs ☑ Ui Xml ☑ Sys JS ☑ XLS	Old Or New Old Rad Xml New Rad Xml Doth	
		Generate
		v Close

The user has to specify the Source folder where the Open DevelopmentXMLs are placed, and give the destination path where user wants the files to be generated and select the necessary files, if All files are required, option 'All' has to be selected and generate button has to be clicked. It will generate the files in the destination path and give log information in the log window which is present at the bottom of the screen.

14.1 Source Folder

Structure of the folders must be same as vercon area folder structure.

14.2 Destination Folder

For non-extensible Radxml's call forms should be copied at the Destination <Destination Path>/CALLFORM_PATH.

If folder not available Bulk generator tool will create CALLFORM_PATH and copy the all Open DevelopmentXMLs from source folder to newly created folder or overwrite existing files.



15. Data Extractor

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console allows the data Extraction for both old and new Open DevelopmentXMLs, the Data Extractor link launches the below Screen.

🖉 Oracle Flexcube MICON- Data Exctractor- Radhakrishn	na-Kernel-11.1-Fc111sqahost-English Webpage Dialog	
Source Folder Browse Destination	on Path Browse	
C Actions	Old Or New	
OLoad	Old Rad Xml	
	New Rad Xml	
O Load&Gen	◯ Both	
Extractions		
All Screen Details Gateway	Details Call form Details	
✓ Label Details ✓ Block Details ✓ Menu and	d Role Details 🗹 Auditrail Details	
✓ Function Call Forms ✓ LOV Details ✓ Amendab	ble Details 🛛 🗹 Summary Details 🗹 Gen Html	
		Extract
		<u> </u>
		Close

The user has to specify the Source folder where the Open Development xmls are placed, and give the destination path where he wants the inc files to be generated and select the necessary options for which he want the Extraction, if All options are required, option 'All' has to be selected and Extract button has to be clicked. It will generate the INC files in the destination path and give the log information in the log window which is present at the bottom of the screen.

15.1 Actions

It is used to specify whether the inc has to be generated or loaded or both.

15.2 Old or New

It is used to specify whether the inc has to be generated only for New Rad xml or Old Rad xml or for both.



16. View Changes

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console allows to view the changes done as part of Child or Cluster or Custom Release, upon loading the Cluster or Custom or Child Open Development xml, it shows the Modifications done as part of Cluster or Custom or Child. The View changes Screen is shown below,

Oracle Flexcube MICON- View Cl	hanges- Developer-Kernel-11.0-Fccdev-English Wo	eb Page Dialog	
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	nent And Integration Console		R 🖬 7 🖡 🔦 🚫 🖺
Action Load V Function Id IADFNPRD Save Xml Path Itterze0148\Shared_	Function Type Child M Parent Function AMDENPRD Browse SubIM Parent Xml Browse	Function Category Maintenance Header Template Image: Contenance Footer Template Maint Audit	Callform Type Data 🔽 🗌 All Files
Search	Data Source Details		n
Preferences Control	Data Source CSTMS_PRODUCT Master Yes Relation Type One To One Multi Record No PK Cols * PRODUCT_CODE PK Types * VARCHAR2	Parent Relation Where Clause Default Order By Image: State of the stat	

It shows the modified Data Sources, Data Source Fields, LOVs, Data Blocks, Block Fields,

Call forms etc in Blue Color as shown below,



Oracle Flexcube MICON- View Cl	nanges- Developer-H	Kernel-11.0-Fccdev-Engli	ish \	Web Page Dialog			
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And Integration C	onsole				R	1 🖪 7 📑 🔦 🚫 📖
Action Load	Function	Type Child 🗸		Function Catego	ry Maintenance 🖂		Callform Type 🛛 Data 🔤
Function Id IADENPRD	Parent Fu	nction AMDENPRD		Header Templat	e 🗸		All Files
Save Xml Path \\cvrze0148\Shared_S	Sub\M Parer	nt Xml Brow	/se	Footer Templat	e Maint Audit 🗹		
Search	Block Field Pr	operties					
Preferences	* Field Name	BTN PREFERENCES		* Data Type	~		Popup Edit Read
DataSource	Field Label	LBL_PREFERENCES	X	DataSource		1	Required
CSTMS_PRODUCT ListOfValues	XSD Tag	BTN_PREFERENCES		Max.Length		1	Visible
LOV_PRODUCT_TYPE	Display Type	Button 🗸		* Field Size		1	Input by LOV Only
DataBlocks	Item Type	Control 💌		* Column Name		1	🗆 Calender Text
BLK_PRODUCT_DETAILS	Parent Field	*		Default Value]	Select Multiple
TXT_MODULE_DESC	Related Block	BLK_PRODUCT_DETAILS	*	Copy From Block		~	🔲 Uppercase Only
	Related Field	~		Copy From Field	~		Checked
Screens	TextArea Rows			TextArea Cols			🗖 Read Only
HEADER	Min.Val			Max.Val			🔲 Subsystem Dependent
BODY	Max.Decimals			Image Source		<u> </u>	🗆 Not Req In Xsd
FioldPate	LOV Name	*		Off Line LOV Name	*		Block PK Field
FST PROD DET	Global LOV			Global Offline LOV		<u>*</u>	LOV Validation Regd
FST_EXG_RATES	Fieldset Name			Accesskey Code			
Actions	Preview Value						
CallForms LaunchForms	Custom Attribute	s Events					
🗀 Summary							
		Attribute Name			Attribute value		Selected
		Aut ibute Maine					Selected

And it shows the newly added Data Sources, Data Source Fields, LOVs, Data Blocks, Block Fields, Call forms etc in Green Color as shown below,

🕘 Oracle Flexcube MICON- View Ch	anges	- Developer-Kernel-11	I.O-Fccdev-English Web Pa	ge Dialog		
ORACLE' FLEXCUBE Managem	ent And	d Integration Console			R 🖬 🎸 📑 🧉	♦ Ø III
Action Load		Function Type	hild 🕑 🛛 Fu	unction Category Mainten	caliform Type	Data 🔽
Function Id IADENPRD		Parent Function	IDFNPRD H	eader Template	~	All Files
Save Xml Path \\cvrze0148\Shared_S	ub\M	Parent Xml	Browse	Footer Template Maint A	udit 🗸	
Search	Call	Form Details				n
Preferences					Screen Arguments DpndtF	ds + -
DataSource CSTMS PRODUCT		Function ID	Parent DataBlock	Parent DataSource	Relation	Relation
🖃 🛄 ListOfValues		IACPRPCL	BLK_PRODUCT_DETAILS	CSTMS_PRODUCT 🔽	CSTMS_PRODUCT.PRODUCT_COE	One To C
LOV_PRODUCT_TYPE						
MODU						
TXT_MODULE_DESC						
B Screens						
BODY						
🗄 🚞 FOOTER						
FieldSets						
FST_EXG_RATES						
Actions						
CallForms						
Summary						
	•					F



17. Field Locator

The Oracle FLEXCUBE Management and Integration Console Field Locator utility will help the user to identify a field in function id. In case of function ids with big or more screens it is always been a challenge for the user to find out the filed in the screen, with Field locator it is fairly simple, user can specify the folder path where the function id HTMLs are present, function id , block name and field name and then click on Find button the FLEXCUBE MICON opens the HTML which has the particular field and highlights the field.

Oracle Flexcube MICON	- Field Locator- Swati	jain-Ker 🔳 🗖 🔀
Folder Path	D:\LCDPRMNT\	Browse
Function Id	LCDPRMNT	
Block Name	_DOCUMENT_DETAILS	
Field Name	DOCMNTTYP	
		Find

The below screen shows how the field locator shows the field.

ocument	ts and Fr	ee Format Te	ext - Windows	Internet E	xplorer		
iments	PRODU Free For	ICT mat Text			PRODUC	I DESCRIPTION	
ument D	Details						+ - I
Cod	de*	Туре	DESCRIPTION	Copies	Originals	Original Required	<u>^</u>
		•					
		Insurance Invoice Transport Others					2
CLAU	JSEDET/	All					
Cod	le #	Description					
000	10.	Description					
							2
4777777							



18. Design practices

- Do not use Query data Sources for Description Fields
- Do not use UI fields if a database item can be used.
- Do not use UI items as Bind variables. As we can use Bind variables from other Blocks, it's not required.
- Do not write Code in JS for sending values to sub screen or call forms.
- Do not write code in JS for disabling sub system dependent fields





Reference Guide [May] [2018] Version 14.0.0.0.0

Oracle Financial Services Software Limited Oracle Park Off Western Express Highway Goregaon (East) Mumbai, Maharashtra 400 063 India

Worldwide Inquiries: Phone: +91 22 6718 3000 Fax:+91 22 6718 3001 www.oracle.com/financialservices/

Copyright © [2007], [2018], Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate failsafe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information on content, products and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services.